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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Gettysburg, Pennsylvania

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Gettysburg Montessori
Charter School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of Gettysburg
Montessori Charter School, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund, and pension and other
postemployment benefit information on pages 60 through 63, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 16, 2025, on our
consideration of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Hortisoo + UW‘W,

Reading, Pennsylvania
April 16, 2025



Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

The Management of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School (Gettysburg or the School) has prepared this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The
information presented here should be read and considered in conjunction with the School's financial statements.

Financial Highlights

For fiscal year 2023-2024, Gettysburg adopted a general fund budget in the amount of $4,754,165. Actual general
fund revenues were $4,646,046. Actual general fund expenditures were $4,511,633. This resulted in a general
fund surplus from operations of $134,413 for the year. The general fund also transferred $63,639 to the food
service fund during the 2023-24 school year. This additional reduction in conjunction with the general fund
operational surplus of $134,413 yielded a governmental fund surplus of $70,774. The beginning fund balance of
$1,693,362 in addition to the surplus of $70,774 results in a total fund balance of $1,764,136.

The School's general fund cash balance at June 30, 2024 was $1,928,219. School receivables consist of $448,332
from other Local Education Agencies, $15,906 in federal receivables, and $8,427 in state receivables. Prepaids
include insurance and property expenditures totaling $18,772. Total cash, receivables, and prepaids amount to
$2,428,021.

General fund payables of $226,010 and accrued expenditures of $67,431 combine with other liabilities for total
liabilities of $663,885.

The School accounts for its food service operation in a proprietary fund, which reports functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Total expenses were $249,426 outpacing
revenues of $188,678, which impacts net position by (560,748). The general fund subsidized the food service fund
in the amount of $63,639, resulting in a net position at the end of the year in the amount of $0.

Effective July 1, 2021, the Charter School adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 87, Leases. The adoption of this standard resulted in the reporting of right-to-use lease
assets and a lease payable on the government-wide statements.

Government-wide net position increased by $379,363 in the current year, bringing the ending net position to
$2,514,729. Business-Type Activities net position increased by $2,891 in the current year. Total net position
of the school at June 30, 2024 was $2,514,729.



Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Overview of Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: (1) management’s discussion and analysis, (2) the basic financial
statements, and (3) required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of
statements that present different views of the School.

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School’s basic financial
statements. Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities which are designed to provide readers with a short-term and long-term overview of the School's
finances. The governmental fund statements indicate how basic services such as regular and special education
were financed in the short-term as well as indicate future spending plans. Proprietary fund statements offer
short-term and long-term financial information about the activities the School operates like a business, such as
food services.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the governmental and fund financial statements. The statements are followed by a section
of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison of the School’s budget for the year.

Figure 1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Figure 1
Management’s Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary
and Analysis Statements Information
Entity-Wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary « > Detail




Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Figure 2 summarizes the major features of the School’s financial statements, including the portion of School
activity they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure 2
Major Features of the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
. Fund Financial Statements
Government-wide
Statements Governmental Fund Proprietary Fund
Scope Entire School (except Activities of the School that are | Activities the School

fiduciary funds)

not proprietary or fiduciary,
such as general operating and
capital projects

operates similar to private
businesses, such as food
services

Required financial
statements

e Statement of net
position

e Statement of
activities

e Balance sheet

e Statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes
in fund balances

e Statement of net
position

e Statement of
revenues, expenses
and changes in net
position

e Statement of cash
flow

Accounting basis
and measurement
focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
focus

Modified accrual accounting and
current financial focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and
capital, current and
noncurrent, and deferred
inflows and outflows of
resources

Generally, assets expected to be
used up and liabilities that come
due during the year or soon
thereafter; no capital assets or
noncurrent liabilities included

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
current and noncurrent

Type of
inflow/
outflow information

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after
the end of the year;
expenditures when goods or
services have been received and
the related liability is due and
payable

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received or
paid




Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Government-Wide Statements
The government-wide statements report information about the School as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies, referred to as the accrual basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the School’s assets and liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of
resources with the difference reported as “net position.” Over time, increases and decreases in net position
measure whether the School’s financial condition is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the School’s net position changed during the year.
All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the change occur, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for some
events that will result in cash flows in future periods.

Both statements report two activities:

e Governmental Activities - contain the basic services of the School, such as regular and special education
and operation and maintenance of plant services, as well as the tuition revenue and federal and state
grants which generally finance these programs.

e Business-Type Activities - The School charges fees to cover the costs of business-type services it provides.
For food service operations, these consist of charges for meal purchases, and federal and state subsidies.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the major individual funds of the School.
A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts used to keep track of specific sources
of funding and spending for particular programs. The School funds are divided into two categories: governmental
and proprietary.

e Governmental Fund - Most of the School’s basic services are included in the governmental fund that
focuses on how money flows into and out of the fund and the balance left at the year-end for future
spending. The governmenta! fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the general
operations and the basic services provided and provide some direction as to whether there will be more
or fewer resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the School’s programs.

e Proprietary Fund (Enterprise) - Services for which the School charges a fee are generally reported in the
proprietary fund and utilize the accrual accounting method - the same method used by private sector
businesses.



Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The Statement of Net Position contains information about what the School’s assets, liabilities, deferred inflows
and outflows of resources, and net position. Management has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 which requires an analysis of current and prior periods. Figure 3 shows a summary
of the School’s net position for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Figure 3
Comparative Statement of Net Position . 3 L
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Summary
Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Current assets S 2,428,021| $ 2,153,386| $ -1 $ -| $2,428,021] $§ 2,153,386
Capital assets, net 5,597,709 5,588,139 - - 5,597,709 5,588,139
Deferred outflows of resources 149,217 140,778 - - 149,217 140,778

Total assets & deferred outflows $ 8174,947| S 7,882,303] $ -l S -| $8,174,947| s 7,882,303
Current liabilities S 774,186| S 567,741| $ -1$ 2,891 § 774,186 $ 570,632
Net notes payable & lease payable 3,687,855 3,797,682 - - 3,687,855 3,797,682
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 924,000 1,018,589 - - 924,000 1,018,589
Deferred inflows of resources 274,177 362,925! - - 274177 362,925]

Total fiabilities & deferred inflows S 5,660,218] S 5,746,937] $ 145 2,891| $5,660,218] S 5,749,828
Net invested in capital assets $ 1,639,940| $ 1,682,740| S -1 s -] $1,639,940f S 1,682,740
Unrestricted (deficit) 874,789 452,626 - (2,891) 874,789 449,735

Total net position (deficit) 2,514,729 _ 2,135,366 - (2,891) 2,514,729 2,132,475

Total liabilities & net position S 8174947 S 7,882,303 S -3 -| $8174,947| S 7,882,303

The level of assets, liabilities, and net position are a result of the full scale educational operation. The fiscal year
being reported is the fourth year of a five year charter.



Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Government-Wide Financial Analysis - continued

The results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 as a whole are reported in the Statement of

Activities. Figure 4 is a summary of changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Revenues are defined as either program or general revenues. Program revenues are generated by the services
themselves or provided externally for use in a particular function and are categorized as charges for services,
operating grants and contributions, or capital grants and contributions. General revenues include investment
earnings and other revenue that does not meet the criteria for program revenue. Expenses are categorized by

function - instruction, support services, and non-instructional services.

Figure 4
Comparative Statement of Activities Summary | Governmental |Business-Type
Year Ended June 30, 2024 Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services S 4,387,402| $ 25,357| $ 4,412,759
Operating grants & contributions 195,834 163,321 359,155
General Revenues 62,810 - 62,810
Total revenues 4,646,046 188,678 4,834,724
Expenditures
Instruction 2,249,778 - 2,249,778
Support services 1,743,334 - 1,743,334
Non-instructional services 36,001 249,426 285,427
Debt service 173,931 - 173,931
Total expenditures 4,203,044 249,426 4,452,470
Transfers (63,639) 63,639 -
Change in net position 379,363 2,891 382,254
Net position (deficit), beginning 2,135,366 (2,891) 2,132,475
Net position, ending S 2,514,729 | S -1s 2,514,729




Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Figure 4
Comparative Statement of Activities Summary | Governmental |Business-Type
Year Ended June 30, 2023 Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services S 4,200,981 S 29,273 $ 4,230,254
Operating grants & contributions 286,016 138,693 424,709
General Revenues 26,407 - 26,407
Total revenues 4,513,404 167,966 4,681,370
Expenditures
instruction 2,054,917 - 2,054,917
Support services 1,597,513 - 1,597,513
Non-instructional services 58,037 222,357 280,394
Debt service _178,474 - 178,474
Total expenditures 3,888,941 222,357 4,111,298
Transfers (31,037) 31,037 -
Change in net position 593,426 (23,354) 570,072
Net position, beginning 1,541,940 20,463 1,562,403
Net position (deficit), ending S 2,135,366 | S (2,891)| S 2,132,475

The School's revenues are predominately local school district funds based on student enroliment in addition to
both grants and contributions and miscellaneous general revenues. For the year ended June 30, 2024, the School's
total revenues of $4,834,724 and expenditures of $4,452,470 resulted in an increase in net position at the end of
the year by $382,254.
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Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Figure 5
Net Cost

Net Cost (Income) of Governmental Activities Total Cost (Income)}
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 of Services of Services
Instruction S 2,249,778 S (60,397)
Instructional student support 188,633 (10,111)
Administrative and financial support services 856,068 {49,192)
Operation and maintenance of plant services 512,226 (136,615)
Pupil transportation 186,407 (2,603)
Student activities 36,001 (10,105)
Interest on long-term debt 173,931 (111,169)

Total S 4,203,044} S (380,192)
Figure 6 Net Cost
Net Cost of Business-Type Activities Total Cost (Income)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 of Services of Services
Food Services S 249,426| S 60,748
Figure 5

Net Cost

Net Cost {Income) of Governmental Activities Total Cost (Income)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 of Services of Services
Instruction S 2,054,917} S 1,771,888
Support services 1,597,513 1,594,526
Student activities 58,037 55,106
Interest on long-term debt 178,474 178,474

Total S 3,888,941] S 3,599,994
Figure 6 Net Cost
Net Cost of Business-Type Activities Total Cost (Income)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 of Services of Services
Food Services S 222357 S 54,391

11



Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2024

Governmental Fund Financial Analysis

The focus of the School's governmental fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the School's financing requirements. In
particular, fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending for
program purposes at the end of the fiscal year. The School's governmental fund reported an ending fund balance
of $1,764,136. Of the ending fund balance, $27,137 is non-spendable and $254,254 is committed.

Budget Variations - General Fund
The actual revenues came in slightly above budgeted amounts by $42,601 primarily because the per-student
subsidy paid by the school districts was slightly higher than budgeted.

Total budgeted expenditures, excluding other financing uses, tracked fairly closely to actual amounts, but with a
variance of $137,674 in the operation and maintenance of plant area, caused by the cost of paving the parking lot,
and $80,652 in transportation cost, with expenditures substantially beyond what was anticipated in the budget.

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the School's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities totaled
$5,597,709 and $5,588,139, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization). This investment in
capital assets consists primarily of the school’s building, equipment & furniture. Additional information on the
School's capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

QOutstanding long-term debt totaling $3,798,156 as of June 30, 2024, consists of the construction loan payable of
$3,794,578 with maturities through 2031 and lease payable of $3,578. Outstanding long-term debt at June 30,
2023 was $3,905,399. Additional information on the School’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The School's primary source of revenue, tuitions received from local school districts, is dependent on the
respective districts’ budgets and expenditures. Revenue from all sources is expected to increase by approximately
3% during the next fiscal year. Enrollment is expected to remain approximately the same, at 278.

Contacting the School's Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide interested parties a general overview of the School's finances.
Questions regarding any of the information provided in this report should be addressed to the CEO, The
Gettysburg Montessori Charter School, 888 Coleman Gettysburg, PA 17325.

12



GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2024

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Restricted cash - security deposits

Intergovernmental receivables

Prepaid expenditures

Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Right-to-use assets, net of accumulated amortization

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources for pension
Deferred outflows of resources for

other postemployment benefits

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued expenditures
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities, due within one year
Noncurrent liabilities:
Loan payable
Lease payable
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefit liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources for pension
Deferred inflows of resources for
other postemployment benefits
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes.

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

S 1,928,219 S - S 1,928,219
8,365 - 8,365
472,665 - 472,665
18,772 - 18,772
60,000 - 60,000
5,533,774 - 5,533,774
3,935 - 3,935
8,025,730 - 8,025,730
144,183 - 144,183
5,034 - 5,034
149,217 - 149,217
226,010 - 226,010
176,846 - 176,846
67,431 - 67,431
193,598 - 193,598
110,301 - 110,301
3,685,398 - 3,685,398
2,457 - 2,457
890,000 - 890,000
34,000 - 34,000
5,386,041 - 5,386,041
244,177 - 244,177
30,000 - 30,000
274,177 - 274,177
1,639,940 - 1,639,940
874,789 - 874,789
S 2,514,729 S - S 2,514,729
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

June 30, 2024

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash - security deposits
Intergovernmental receivables
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits

Accrued expenditures
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable

Committed
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

See accompanying notes.

General Fund

$ 1,928,219
8,365

472,665
18,772

S 2,428,021

S 226,010
176,846
67,431
193,598

663,885

27,137
254,254
1,482,745

1,764,136

S 2,428,021
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2024

Amounts reported for governmental activities on the statement of net position are different because:
TOTAL FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND S 1,764,136

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental
funds. The cost of the assets is $6,368,955 and the accumulated
depreciation and amortization is $771,246. 5,597,709

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term
liabilities at year end consist of:

Loan payable S (3,794,578)
Lease payable (3,578) (3,798,156)

The net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of
resources for pensions are not reflected on the fund financial
statements. (989,994)

The net other postemployment benefit liabilities and related deferred
outflows and inflows of resources for other postemployment benefits
are not reflected on the fund financial statements. (58,966)

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES S 2,514,729

See accompanying notes. 16



GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

GOVERNMENTAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

REVENUES
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instructional services
Support services
Operation of noninstructional services
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

See accompanying notes.

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

General Fund

S 4,452,052
23,903
170,091

4,646,046

2,295,940
1,900,222
34,257

107,243
173,931

4,511,633

134,413

(63,639)

70,774

1,693,362

S 1,764,136
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND S 70,774

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation/amortization expense.

Capital outlays S 222,514
Less: depreciation and amortization expense (212,944) 9,570

Issuance of long-term debt (e.g. loans) provides current financial
resources to the governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds.

Repayment of loan principal 103,928
Repayment of lease principal 3,315 107,243

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. The difference in the amount incurred and amount
paid of these activities is:

Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows 177,240
Net OPEB liability and related deferred outflows and inflows 14,536 191,776
CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 379,363

See accompanying notes. 18



GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

June 30, 2024

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

See accompanying notes.

TOTAL NET POSITION

Food Service

s

19



GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Food Service

OPERATING REVENUES
Food service revenues S 25,357

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries 48,369
Employee benefits 6,119
Supplies 187,974
Other operating expenses 6,964
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 249,426

OPERATING LOSS (224,069)

NONOPERATING REVENUES

State subsidies 25,256
Federal subsidies 138,065
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 163,321

LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS (60,748)

TRANSFERS IN 63,639
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,891

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF YEAR (2,891)

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR S -

See accompanying notes. 20



GETTYSBURG MONTESSOR! CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from users
Payments to employees for services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Federal sources
State sources
Transfers in

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash used for operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in:
Unearned revenues

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes.

Enterprise Fund
Food Service

$ 22,466
(54,488)
(194,938)

(226,960)

138,065
25,256
63,639

226,960

S (224,069)

(2,891)

L2

(226,960)
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

Gettysburg Montessori Charter School (the “Charter School”) is organized as a nonprofit corporation in
Pennsylvania to operate a charter school in accordance with Pennsylvania Act 22 of 1997. The Charter School is
operating under a charter school contract ending June 30, 2025. The Charter School receives funding from
various local School Districts on a monthly basis based upon the enrollment from the corresponding School
District. The rate of funding per student is determined on an annual basis.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America {GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) is the authoritative standard-setting body for the
establishment of governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of these
accounting principles are as follows:

A. Reporting Entity

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity
include those of the Charter School and its component units.

The Charter School used guidance contained in generally accepted accounting principles to evaluate the
possible inclusion of related entities (authorities, boards, councils, fiduciary activities, etc.) within its
reporting entity. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
reporting entity consists of the primary government and legally separate entities for which the primary
government is financially accountable. In addition, the primary government may determine, through the
exercise of management’s professional judgment, that the inclusion of a legally separate entity that does
not meet the financial accountability criteria is necessary in order to prevent the reporting entity’s financial
statements from being misleading. [n such instances, a legally separate entity should be included as a
component unit if the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government or other
component units are such that the exclusion from the financial reporting entity would render the financial
reporting entity’s financial statements incomplete or misleading. In evaluating how to define the reporting
entity, management has considered all potential component units.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the Charter School has determined it has no component units.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

B. Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
display information about the reporting entity, except for its fiduciary activities. All fiduciary activities are
reported only in the fund financial statements. The government-wide statements include separate columns
for the governmental and business-type activities of the primary government, as well as any discretely
presented component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by intergovernmental
revenues and other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from the legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function to the
Charter School are offset by the program revenues related to that function. Direct expenses are those that
are directly related to and clearly identified with a function. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or others who purchase, use or directly benefit from services or goods provided by a given
function, or 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital requirements
of a function. Other items properly not included in program revenues are reported as general revenues.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are the contributions made to any component units from the
Charter School’s governmental funds and transfers between governmental funds and business-type and
fiduciary funds. Elimination of these contributions would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

C. Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

The Charter School Reports the Following Major Governmental Fund:
General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the Charter School. This fund is

charged with all costs of operating the Charter School for which a separate fund has not been
established.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

C. Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements - continued
The Charter School has the Following Major Enterprise Fund:

Food Service Fund: The food service fund is authorized under Section 504 of the Public School Code of
1949 to account for all revenues, food purchases, and costs and expenses for the food service
program. The food service fund is the Charter School’s only major enterprise fund where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs of providing food services are covered by user charges and
subsidies received.

The Charter School does not currently have any fiduciary funds.

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as interfund receivables and payables. While these
balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities
(i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in
the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between funds included in business-type activities
(i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the
business-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund
financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so
that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances
between funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the
net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current
financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations (food service). Operating expenses for
proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services and administrative expenses. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and
state subsidies are considered nonoperating revenues as no exchange transaction occurs.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Charter School considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of year-end.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred
and all other eligibility requirements have been met. If time eligibility requirements are not met, deferred
inflows of resources would be recorded. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the Charter School.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt, including leases and other right-to-use arrangements, are
reported as other financing sources.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

E.

Budgetary Information

Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the
general fund. All annual appropriations, except unexpended grant appropriations and encumbrances, lapse
at fiscal year end. The Charter School’s 2023-2024 budget was prepared and approved by the board of
trustees prior to submitting the budget to the Pennsylvania Department of Education.

Financial Position

1. Cash
The Charter School’s reporting entity considers all highly-liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

2. Investments
The Charter School is permitted to invest funds in the following types of investments:

Obligations of (a) the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, (b) the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the
Commonwealth, or (c) any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its
agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.

Deposits in savings accounts, time deposits, or share accounts of institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to the extent that such accounts are so insured and for any
amounts above the insured maximum, provided that approved collateral as provided by law,
therefore, shall be pledged by the depository.

Pennsylvania Act 10 of 2016 became effective May 25, 2016, and expanded the permitted investment
types to include commercial paper, bankers’” acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit, and insured
bank deposit reciprocals as long as certain safeguards related to credit quality and maturity are met.

Investments are valued at fair value in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, except for investments in external
investment pools, which are valued at amortized costs if required criteria are met as outlined in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and
Pool Participants.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F.

Financial Position - continued

Investments - continued

The Charter School categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant uncobservable inputs.

Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility. Due
to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in
the fair value of investments will occur in the near-term and that such changes could materially affect
the amounts reported in the statement of net position.

Interfund Transactions

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the year are referred to as “interfund receivables/payables.” Any residual balances.outstanding
between the governmental and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances.”

Receivables

The intergovernmental receivables are amounts due from local school districts, the Pennsylvania
Department of Education (PDE), and other governmental entities. Management evaluates the
collectable nature of outstanding receivables and records an allowance if needed.

Prepaid ltems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The costs of prepaid items
are recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization

The Charter School’s capital assets with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost
and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. The reported value
excludes normal maintenance and repairs, which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital
assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the
original estimate. Donated capital assets are recorded at the acquisition value of the item at the date of
donation. Right-to-use assets are reported when a qualifying liability is incurred.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F. Financial Position - continued

6. Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization - continued

The Charter School generally capitalizes assets as purchase and construction outlays occur. Assets
purchased or constructed with long-term debt may be capitalized regardless of the threshold
established. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or
materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Construction in progress is stated at cost and consists
primarily of costs incurred on construction projects. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until the assets are complete and placed into service. Capital assets are
depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and
applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain
or loss is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives for depreciable and amortizable assets are as follows:

Assets Years
Building and building improvements 10-40
Land improvements 15
Furniture and computer equipment 5-7
Right-to-use lease assets 5

7. Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are required to be reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In
general, any long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell. The Charter School periodically evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets,
including real estate and improvements and deferred costs, using objective methodologies. Such
methodologies include evaluations based on cash flows generated by the underlying assets or other
determinants of fair value. None of the Charter School’s long-lived assets were considered to be
impaired as of June 30, 2024.

8. Unearned Revenues
Revenues that are received but not earned are reported as unearned revenues in the government-wide,
governmental, and proprietary fund financial statements. Unearned revenues arise when resources are
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue
recognition criteria are met, or when the Charter School has legal claim to the resources, the liability for
unearned revenue is removed from the respective financial statements and revenue is recognized.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F.

Financial Position - continued

10.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the statement
of net position. This same treatment also applies to proprietary fund financial statements. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Other bond
issuance costs are expensed at the time the debt is issued.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize the face amount of debt issued or
incurred and any original issue premiums or discounts are reported as other financing sources and uses.
Issuance costs and underwriter’s discount, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Leases

Gettysburg Montessori Charter School is a lessee for a noncancellable lease of equipment. The Charter
Schoo! recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the
government-wide financial statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the Charter School initially measures the lease liability at the present
value of payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is
reduced by the principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the
initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease
commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a
straight-line basis over its useful life.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F. Financial Position - continued

10. Leases - continued

11.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the Charter School determines (1) the
discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and
(3) lease payments.

e The Charter School uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the
interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the Charter School generally uses its
estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

e The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Also included within the lease
term are any qualifying lease renewals or early termination options that the Charter School is
reasonably certain to exercise or not exercise. Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that the
Charter School is reasonably certain to exercise.

The Charter School monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its
lease and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to
significantly affect the amount of the lease liability.

Lease assets are reported with capital assets and lease liabilities are reported with liabilities on the
statement of net position.

Pension

The Charter School contributes to the Public School Employees Retirement System (PSERS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Charter School accounts for the plan
under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, which establishes standards for the measurement,
recognition, and display of pension expense and related liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension, certain required supplementary information, and note
disclosures.

For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS), and additions to/deductions from
PSERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refund of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F.

Financial Position - continued

12.

13.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The Charter School’s other postemployment benefit plan is accounted for under the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 75, which establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other
postemployment benefit expense and related liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to other postemployment benefits, certain required supplementary information, and
note disclosures. The Charter School provides OPEB under the following plan:

PSERS OPEB Plan

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the PSERS and additions to/deductions from PSERS’ fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then. The Charter School has two items that qualify for
reporting in this category:

Deferred outflows of resources for pension relate to the Charter School’s net pension liability and
pension expense and arise from changes in assumptions, actual versus expected results, changes in
benefits, variances in expected versus actual investment earnings, changes in the employer’s
proportion, or differences between employer contributions and the proportionate share of total
contributions reported by the pension plan. These amounts are deferred and amortized over either
a closed 5-year period or the average remaining service life of all employees depending on what
gave rise to the deferred outflow. Also included are contributions made to the pension plan
subsequent to the measurement date and prior to the Charter School’s year end. The contributions
will be recognized as a reduction in net pension liability in the following year.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F.

Financial Position - continued
13. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - continued

Deferred outflows of resources for other postemployment benefit liabilities relate to the Charter
School’s liability for postemployment benefits other than pensions and related expenses and arise
from the changes in assumptions, actual versus expected results, changes in benefits, variances in
expected versus actual investment earnings, changes in the employer’s proportion, or differences
between employer contributions and the proportionate share of total contributions reported by the
plan. These amounts are deferred and amortized over either a closed 5-year period or the average
remaining service life of all employees depending on what gave rise to the deferred outflow. Also
included are contributions or benefit payments made subsequent to the measurement date and
prior to the Charter School’s year end. These payments will be recognized as a reduction to the net
other postemployment benefit liability in the following year.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Charter School has two types of items that
qualify for reporting in this category:

Deferred inflows of resources for pensions relate to the Charter School’s net pension liability and
pension expense and arise from changes in assumptions, actual versus expected results, changes in
benefits, variances in expected versus actual investment earnings, changes in the employer’s
proportion, or differences between employer contributions and the proportionate share of total
contributions reported by the pension plan. These amounts are deferred and amortized over either
a closed 5-year period or the average remaining service life of all employees depending on what
gave rise to the deferred inflow.

Deferred inflows of resources for other postemployment benefit liabilities relate to the Charter
School’s liability for postemployment benefits other than pensions and related expenses and arise
from changes in assumptions, actual versus expected results, changes in benefits, variances in
expected versus actual investment earnings, changes in the employer’s proportion, or differences
between employer contributions and the proportionate share of total contributions reported by the
plan. These amounts are deferred and amortized over either a closed 5-year period or the average
remaining service life of all employees depending on what gave rise to the deferred inflow.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F.

Financial Position - continued

14.

15.

Net Position and Flow Assumptions

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in the capital assets component of net position is
comprised of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. In addition, any deferred outflows of resources and/or deferred inflows of resources related to
such capital assets or liabilities associated with the capital assets should also be added to or deducted
from the overall net investment in capital assets. If there are unspent related debt proceeds at year-
end, the portion of debt attributed to the unspent bond proceeds is not included in the calculation of
net investment in capital assets. The restricted component of net position is used when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by a higher
governmental authority or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The remaining component of net position is unrestricted.

The Charter School applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both the restricted and unrestricted components of net position are available.

Fund Balance Policies and Flow Assumptions

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The Charter School itself can establish
limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).

The nonspendable fund balance classification represents assets in nonspendable form and includes
items such as prepaid expenditures and restricted security deposits.

The restricted fund balance classification represents funds that are limited in use due to constraints for a
specific purpose through restrictions by external parties, grant agreements, or enabling legislation.

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the Charter School’s highest level of decision-making
authority. The board of trustees is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Charter School
that can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the
adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

F.

Financial Position - continued

15.

16.

Fund Balance Policies and Flow Assumptions - continued

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Finance Committee or
Principal/Chief Executive Officer may assign fund balance. Unlike commitments, assignments generally
only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either
remove or revise a commitment.

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. The Charter School’s policy states in circumstances where an
expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund balance
classifications, the order in which resources will be expensed is as follows: restricted fund balance,
followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and unassigned fund balance.

Income Tax Status

The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Charter School is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Consequently, the Charter School will not incur
any liability for federal income tax with the exception of any liability arising from unrelated business
income. The Charter School’s federal and state tax returns are subject to examination by the Internal
Revenue Service and state tax authorities, generally for a period of three years after the returns are
filed.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Compliance with Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions
The Charter School had no material violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions.
B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2024, expenditures exceeded appropriations by $119,639 in the general fund.

Excess expenditures were covered by revenue in excess of budget.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit and investment policy of the Charter School adheres to state statutes. There were no deposits or
investment transactions during the year that were in violation of either the state statutes or the policy of the
Charter School.

The carrying amount of cash and investments as presented on the financial statements consist of the following
at June 30, 2024:

Deposits $ 1,293,593
Certificate of Deposit 634,626
S 1,928,219

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The Charter School does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2024, the
carrying amount of the Charter School’s deposits and the bank balance was $1,928,219. Of the bank balance,
$250,000 was covered by NCUA insurance, and $1,678,219 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was
not covered by collateralization requirements in accordance with Act 72 of the 1971 Session of the General
Assembly.
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NOTE 4 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

The following schedule represents intergovernmental receivables at June 30, 2024:

General
Fund
Local Education Agencies S 448,332
Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency 8,427
Pennsylvania Department of Education:
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant 2,071
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 2,857
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 10,978
Total intergovernmental receivables $ 472,665
NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfund transfers are summarized as follows at June 30, 2024:
Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund S - S 63,639
Enterprise - Food Service 63,639 -
S 63,639 S 63,639

Interfund transfers were made to fund cash deficiencies in ongoing food service operations.
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NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows:

Beginning Reclass/ Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 60,000 S -5 - S 60,000
Construction in progress 69,852 - (69,852) -
Total assets not being depreciated 129,852 - (69,852) 60,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and building improvements 5,718,111 - - 5,718,111
Land improvements - 222,514 69,852 292,366
Furniture and computer equipment 292,591 - - 292,591
Total assets being depreciated 6,010,702 222,514 69,852 6,303,068
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and building improvements 420,857 145,205 - 566,062
Land improvements - 7,375 - 7,375
Furniture and computer equipment 138,254 57,603 - 195,857
Total accumulated depreciation 559,111 210,183 - 769,294
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 5,451,591 12,331 69,852 5,533,774
Right-to-use assets being amortized:
Leased equipment 45,843 - (39,956) 5,887
Less accumulated amortization for:
Leased equipment 39,147 2,761 (39,956) 1,952
Total right-to-use assets
being amortized, net 6,696 (2,761) - 3,935
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES,
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET S 5,588,139 S 9,570 S - $ 5,597,709
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NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the
primary government as follows:

Instruction S 114,070
Administrative and financial support services 2,761
Operation and maintenance of plant services 94,409
Student activities 1,704

TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
EXPENSE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES S 212,944

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Construction Loan (Direct Borrowing)

On August 17, 2020, the Charter School closed on an open-end construction loan for $4,031,000 from Members
1st Credit Union. The proceeds were used to refund the Centric Bank Mortgages (A) and (B), pay costs to issue
the note, and payments funding renovations, additions, and improvements to the Charter School’s property. The
loan is secured by real property located at 888 Coleman Road, Straban Township, PA 17325. The loan has an
initial scheduled maturity date of August 2045 and has the following payment terms: 5.0% interest only
payments, payable through the construction loan period ending in December 2021. The permanent loan period
began in January 2022, with payments to include 4.5% interest and principal payments through August 2030.

The future annual payments required for the loan payable are as follows for the years ending June 30:

Principal Interest Total
2025 S 109,180 S 168,532 S 277,712
2026 114,196 163,516 277,712
2027 119,442 158,270 277,712
2028 124,509 153,203 277,712
2029 130,649 147,063 277,712
2030-2031 3,196,602 22,967 3,219,569

$ 3,794,578 S 813,551 $ 4,608,129
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - CONTINUED

Construction Loan (Direct Borrowing) - continued

Upon default of the Construction Loan, the Credit Union has the following remedies: (a) declare all or any part of
any Obligations note payable on demand to be immediately due and payable without demand or notice of any
kind; (b) terminate any obligation it may have to grant any additional loan, credit or other financial
accommodation to Debtor; (c) peaceably retake possession of the Collateral with or without notice or process of
law, and for that purpose may enter upon any premises where the Collateral is located and remove the same;
(d) sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral in one or more parcels at public or private sale or sales upon
such terms and conditions as it may deem advisable and at such prices as it may deem best, for cash or on credit
or for future delivery without assumption of any credit risk; (e} demand, collect and sue on any Collateral
consisting of accounts or any other Collateral; (f} place an administrative hold on and set off against the
Obligations any property held in a deposit or other account with Secured Party or otherwise owing by Secured
Party in any capacity to Debtor.

Leases

The Charter School has entered into a lease agreement for copiers. The lease has a termination date of July
2027. The lease includes monthly payments of principal and interest at a rate of 3.25% and is secured by the
underlying assets of the lease.

Future lease maturities as of June 30 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2025 S 1,121 S 100 S 1,221
2026 1,158 63 1,221
2027 1,197 24 1,221
2028 102 - 102
S 3,578 S 187 S 3,765
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - CONTINUED

Leases - continued
Long-term liability balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2024, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Loan payable S 3,898506 S - § 103,928 $§ 3,794,578 S 109,180
Lease payable 6,893 - 3,315 3,578 1,121
Net pension liability 978,092 17,387 105,479 890,000 -
Net other postemployment

benefit liability (OPEB) 40,497 - 6,497 34,000 -

Total governmental
long-term liabilities $ 4,923,988  § 17,387 § 219,219 $ 4,722,156 S 110,301

Total interest paid during the year ended June 30, 2024, was $173,931. The lease liability will be liquidated by
the general fund. The net pension and PSERS OPEB Plan portion of the OPEB liability will be liguidated through
future contributions to PSERS at the statutory rates; contributions will be made from the general fund. The
Charter School OPEB Plan portion of the OPEB liability will be liquidated through future payments from the
general fund.
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan

General Information About the Pension Plan

Plan Description

PSERS (the System) is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania under Title 24, Part IV of
the Pennsylvania General Assembly. The members eligible to participate in the System include all full-time
public school employees, part-time hourly public school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in
the school year, and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the
school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial report
that can be obtained at www.psers.pa.gov.

Benefits Provided

PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly retirement benefits
upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of credited
service; or (c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120) preserves the benefits of
existing members and introduced benefit reductions for individuals who become new members on or after
July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership classes, Membership Class T-E (Class T-E) and Membership

Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65
with a minimum of 3 years of service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater
than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service.

Act 5 of 2017 (Act 5) introduced a hybrid benefit plan with two membership classes and a separate defined
contribution plan for individuals who become new members on or after July 1, 2019. Act 5 created two new
hybrid membership classes, Membership class T-G (Class T-G) and Membership Class T-H (Class T-H) and the
separate defined contribution membership class, Membership Class DC (Class DC). To qualify for normal
retirement, Class T-G and Class T-H members must work until age 67 with a minimum of 3 years of credited
service. Class T-G may also qualify for normal retirement by attaining a total combination of age and service that
is equal to or greater than 97 with a minimum of 35 years of credited service.

Benefits are generally equal to 1.0% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the member’s final average
salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service. For members whose
membership started prior to July 1, 2011, after completion of 5 years of service, a member’s right to the defined
benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right
to benefits is vested after 10 years of service.
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued
General Information About the Pension Plan - continued

Benefits Provided - continued

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited service. Such
benefits are generally equal to 2.0% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the member’s final average
salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service, but not less than one-third
of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would have had at normal retirement age. Members
over normal retirement age may apply for disability benefits.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at least one year
of credited service {age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-E and Class T-F members) or
who has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E and Class T-F members). Such benefits are
actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if the member had retired on the day before
death.

Contributions

The contribution policy is set by state statute and requires contributions by active members and employers. The
contribution rates based on qualified member compensation for virtually all members is presented below:

Member Contribution Rates
Membership | Continuous Employment | Defined Benefit (DB) | DC Contribution
Class Since Contribution Rate Rate Tota!l Contribution Rate
. 5.25%
T-C Prior to July 22, 1983 5.25% N/A
6.25%
T-C On or afterJuly 22, 1983 6.25% N/A 6.25%
T-D Prior to July 22, 1983 6.50% N/A 6.50%
T-D On or after July 22, 1983 7.50% N/A 7.50%
7.50% base rate with Priorto 7/1/21: 7.50%
T-E Onor afterJuly 1, 2011 shared risk provision N/A After 7/1/21: 8.00%
10.30% base rate with Priorto 7/1/21: 10.30%
T-F On or afterJuly 1, 2011 shared risk provision N/A After 7/1/21: 10.80%
5.50% base rate with Priorto7/1/21: 8.25%
T-G On or after July 1, 2019 shared risk provision 2.75% After 7/1/21: 9.00%
4.50% base rate with Priorto 7/1/21: 7.50%
T-H On or afterJuly 1, 2019 shared risk provision 3.00% After 7/1/21: 8.25%
DC On or after July 1, 2019 N/A 7.50% 7.50%
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

General Information About the Pension Plan - continued

Contributions - continued

Shared Risk Program Summary
Membership Defined Benefit (DB) Shared Risk
Class Base Rate Increment Minimum Maximum
T-E 7.50% +/- 0.50% 5.50% 9.50%
T-F 10.30% +/- 0.50% 8.30% 12.50%
T-G 5.50% +/-0.75% 2.50% 8.50%
T-H 4.50% +/- 0.75% 1.50% 7.50%

Employer Contributions:

The Charter School’s contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 was 33.09%
of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that when combined with employee contributions, is
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the Charter School were
$105,183 for the year ended June 30, 2024. In addition, the Charter School's contribution to the defined
contribution plan was $858 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2024, the Charter School reported a liability of $890,000 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System’s total pension liability as of
June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023. The Charter School’s proportion of the net pension liability was calculated
utilizing the employer’s one-year reported contributions as it relates to the total one-year reported
contributions. AtJune 30, 2024, the Charter School’s proportion was 0.0020% which was a decrease of 0.0002%
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2023.
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions - continued

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Charter Schoo! recognized pension expense of ($72,057). At June 30,
2024, the Charter School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S 12,000
Changes of assumptions 13,000 -
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings 26,000 -
Changes in proportion - plan level - 232,000
Difference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of total contributions - 177
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 105,183 -

S 144,183 S 244,177

The $105,183 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Charter School
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows for the years
ending June 30:

2025 $  (144,728)
2026 (74,538)
2027 5,545
2028 8544
$  (205,177)
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions - continued

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability at June 30, 2023 was determined by rolling forward the System’s total pension liability
at June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

e Actuarial valuation date - June 30, 2022

e Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level % of pay.

e Investment return - 7.00%, includes inflation at 2.50%.

e Salary growth - Effective average of 4.50%, comprised of inflation of 2.50% and 2.00% for real wage
growth and for merit or seniority increases.

e Mortality rates were based on a blend of 50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Tables
for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a modified version of
the MP-2020 Mortality Improvement Scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2020.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The PSERS pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be

amended by the PSERS Board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining
a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

45



GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions - continued

Actuarial Assumptions - continued

The PSERS Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each
major asset class as of June 30, 2023 is:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation  Rate of Return
Global public equity 30.0% 5.2%
Private equity 12.0% 7.9%
Fixed income 33.0% 3.2%
Commoaodities 7.5% 2.7%
Infrastructure/MLPs 10.0% 5.4%
Real estate 11.0% 5.7%
Absolute return 4.0% 4.1%
Cash 3.0% 1.2%
Leverage (10.5%) 1.2%

100.0%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Employee Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions - continued

Sensitivity of the Charter School’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage point lower
(6.00%) or one-percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Charter School's proportionate share of the
net pension liability S 1,153,000 S 890,000 S 667,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report which can be found on the System’s website at www.psers.pa.gov.

Payables to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2024, the Charter School had an accrued balance due to PSERS, including contributions related to
pension and OPEB of $26,073. This amount represents the Charter School’s contractually obligated
contributions for wages paid in April 2024 through June 2024.

403(b) Tax Shelter Plan

The Charter School also provides an alternative defined contribution pension plan for full-time employees that
do not participate in PSERS through the Gettysburg Montessori Charter School 403(b} Plan. Non-PSERS
employees participate from the date of employment, with a mandatory minimum contribution of 5%. The
Charter School matches the employee’s contribution dollar for dollar up to 5% of their compensation. The
Charter School’s contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2024 totaled $77,060.
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NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Employee Defined Benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
The Charter School has other postemployment benefits (OPEB) under a cost-sharing, multiple employer,
employee defined benefit other postemployment benefits plan administered through PSERS (PSERS OPEB Plan).

PSERS OPEB Plan
General Information About the PSERS OPEB Plan

Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

PSERS (the System) provides Premium Assistance which, is a governmental cost sharing, multiple-employer
other postemployment benefit plan (OPEB) for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect to participate.
Employer contribution rates for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance
Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Effective
January 1, 2002 under the provisions of Act 9 of 2001, participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive
premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket monthly health
insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their health insurance through
either their school employer or the PSERS’ Health Options Program. As of June 30, 2023, there were no
assumed future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.

Premium Assistance Eligibility Criteria

Retirees of the System can participate in the Premium Assistance Program if they satisfy the following criteria:
¢ Have 24 % or more years of service, or
e Are adisability retiree, or
¢ Have 15 or more years of service and retired after reaching superannuation age.
For Class DC members to become eligible for premium assistance, they must satisfy the following criteria:
e Attain Medicare eligibility with 24 % or more eligibility points, or

e Have 15 or more eligibility points and terminated after age 67, and
¢ Have received all or part of the distributions.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued
General Information About the PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

Pension Plan Description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement
benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate
in the System include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly public school employees who
render at least 500 hours of service in the school year, and part-time per diem public school employees who
render at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues
a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.psers.pa.gov.

Benefits Provided

Participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $100
per month or their out-of-pocket monthly health insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible
retirees must obtain their health insurance through either their school employer or the PSERS’ Health Options
Program.

Contributions

The contribution policy is set by state statute. A portion of each employer’s contribution is set aside for
premium assistance. The Charter School’s contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2024, was 0.64% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the OPEB plan from the
Charter School were $2,034 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2024, the Charter School reported a liability of $34,000 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate
the net OPEB liability was determined by rolling forward the System’s total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 to
June 30, 2023. The Charter School’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s
one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2024,
the Charter School’s proportion was 0.0019% which was a decrease of 0.0003% from its proportion measured as
of June 30, 2023.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
continued

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Charter School recognized OPEB expense of ($12,502). At June 30, 2024,
the Charter School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of assumptions S 3,000 S 6,000
Changes in proportion - 24,000
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 2,034 -
S 5,034 $ 30,000

The $2,034 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Charter School
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB
liability in the year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows for the years ending
June 30:

2025 $  (8,000)
2026 (8,000)
2027 (5,000)
2028 (5,000)
2029 (1,000)
Total $  (27,000)
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
continued

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023, was determined by rolling forward the System’s total OPEB liability
as of June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

e Actuarial valuation date - June 30, 2022.

¢ Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level % of pay.

e Investment return - 4.13% - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate.

e Salary growth - Effective average of 4.50%, comprised of inflation of 2.50% and 2.00% for real wage
growth and for merit or seniority increases.

e Premium Assistance reimbursement is capped at $1,200 per year.

e Assumed Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1,200 in premium assistance
per year.

e Mortality rates were based on a blend of 50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-2010 Retiree Tables for Males
and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a modified version of the
MP-2020 Improvement scale.

e Participation rate:
= Eligible retirees will elect to participate Pre-age 65 at 50%
=  Eligible retirees will elect to participate Post-age 65 at 70%
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
continued

Actuarial Assumptions - continued

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2020.

The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate:

e The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 determined the employer contribution rate for
fiscal year 2023.

e Cost Method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third fiscal year
after the valuation date.

e Asset valuation method: Market Value.

e Participation rate: The actual data for retirees benefiting under the Plan as of June 30, 2021 was used in
lieu of the 63% utilization assumption for eligible retirees.

e Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a
modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality Improvement Scale.

Investments consist primarily of short-term assets designed to protect the principal of the plan assets. The
expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using the OPEB asset allocation policy and
best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each asset class.

The OPEB plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be amended by
the PSERS Board. Under the program, as defined in the retirement code employer contribution rates for
Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance Account that are sufficient for
the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
continued

Actuarial Assumptions - continued

The PSERS Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each
major asset class as of June 30, 2023 is:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 100.0% 1.2%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.13%. Under the plan’s funding policy,
contributions are structured for short-term funding of Premium Assistance. The funding policy sets contribution
rates necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third fiscal year after the actuarial
valuation date. The Premium Assistance account is funded to establish reserves that are sufficient for the
payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Due to the short-term funding policy, the
OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected to be sufficient to meet projected future benefit payments,
therefore the plan is considered a “pay-as-you-go” plan. A discount rate of 4.13% which represents the S&P
20-year Municipa! Bond Rate at June 30, 2023, was applied to all projected benefit payments to measure the
total OPEB liability.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
continued

Sensitivity of the Charter School’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees receiving less than $1,200 in annual Premium Assistance. As of
June 30, 2023, retirees Premium Assistance benefits are not subject to future healthcare cost increases. The
annual Premium Assistance reimbursement for qualifying retirees is capped at a maximum of $1,200. As of
June 30, 2023, 92,677 retirees were receiving the maximum amount allowed of $1,200 per year. As of June 30,
2023, 522 members were receiving less than the maximum amount allowed of $1,200 per year. The actual
number of retirees receiving less than the $1,200 per year cap is a small percentage of the total population and
has a minimal impact on Healthcare Cost Trends as depicted below.

The following presents the Charter School’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability for the June 30, 2023
measurement date, calculated using current Healthcare cost trends as well as what the Charter School’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if the health cost trends were one-percentage point
lower or one-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Charter School's proportionate share
of the net OPEB liability S 34,000 S 34,000 S 34,000

Sensitivity of the Charter School’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 4.13%, as well as what the net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage point lower (3.13%) or
one-percentage point higher (5.13%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
3.13% 4.13% 5.13%
Charter School's proportionate share
of the net OPEB liability S 39,000 S 34,000 S 31,000
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

PSERS OPEB Plan - continued

PSERS OPEB Plan Liability, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
continued

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report which can be found on the System’s website at www.psers.pa.gov.

Pavyables Related to the Plan

At June 30, 2024, the Charter School had an accrued balance due to PSERS of $26,073 including balances related
to pension and OPEB. This amount represents the Charter School’s contractually obligated contributions for
wages paid in April 2024 through June 2024.

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Charter School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Significant losses are covered by
commercial insurance for all major programs except for unemployment compensation, for which the Charter
School retains risk of loss. For insured programs, there were no significant reductions in insurance coverages for
the 2023/2024 school year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year
and three prior years.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Charter School receives federal, state and local funding through a number of programs. Payments made by
these sources under contractual agreements are provisional and subject to redetermination based on filing
reports and audits of those reports. Final settlements due from or to these sources are recorded in the year in
which the related services are performed. Any adjustments resulting from subsequent examinations are
recognized in the year in which the results of such examinations become known. Charter School officials do not
expect any significant adjustments as a result of these examinations.

The Charter School is involved in various lawsuits that arise in the normal course of business. Although the
outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Charter School’s management,
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Charter
School.

NOTE 12 - FUND BALANCE

Details of the Charter School's governmental fund balance reporting and policy can be found in Note 1,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Fund balance classifications for the year ended June 30, 2024, were
as follows:

General Fund

The general fund has nonspendable funds of $27,137 related to prepaid expenditures and security deposits;
committed funds of $254,254 for building repairs; and unassigned funds totaling $1,482,745.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 13 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) has issued the following standards which have not yet
been implemented:

e Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences - The primary objective of this statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement
guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and
measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.
The requirements of this statement are effective for the Charter School’s fiscal year ending June 30,
2025.

e Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures - The primary objective of this statement is to provide users
of government financial statements with essential information about risks related to government's
vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. The requirements of this statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2024, and all reporting periods thereafter.

e Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements - The primary objective of this statement is
to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing
information that is essential for decision making and assessing a government's accountability. The
requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025, and all
reporting periods thereafter.

e Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets - The primary objective of this statement is to
provide users of government financial statements with essential information about certain types of
capital assets. This statement also requires additional disclosures for capital assets held for sale. The
requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025, and all
reporting periods thereafter.

The Charter School has not yet completed the analysis necessary to determine the actual financial statement
impact of these new pronouncements.
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GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Local sources S 4,412,491 S 4,396,491 S 4,452,052 S 55,561
State sources 102,994 94,456 23,903 (70,553)
Federal sources 238,680 112,498 170,091 57,593
TOTAL REVENUES 4,754,165 4,603,445 4,646,046 42,601
EXPENDITURES
INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES:
Regular programs - elementary/secondary 1,891,592 1,891,592 1,760,839 130,753
Special programs - elementary/secondary 444,717 444,717 535,056 {90,339)
Other instructional programs -
elementary/secondary 2,000 2,000 45 1,955
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES 2,338,309 2,338,309 2,295,940 42,369
SUPPORT SERVICES:
Students 150,471 150,471 109,635 40,836
Instructional staff 24,206 24,206 10,126 14,080
Administration 745,612 745,612 770,587 (24,975)
Pupil health 83,046 83,046 68,872 14,174
Business services 110,655 110,655 114,264 (3,609)
Operation and maintenance of plant 502,657 502,657 640,331 (137,674)
Student transportation services 105,755 105,755 186,407 {80,652)
TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES 1,722,402 1,722,402 1,900,222 (177,820)
OPERATION OF NONINSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES:
Food services 224,626 - - -
Student activities 53,283 53,283 34,297 18,986
TOTAL OPERATION OF
NONINSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES 277,909 53,283 34,297 18,986
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS 278,000 278,000 281,174 (3,174)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,616,620 4,391,994 4,511,633 (119,639)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 137,545 211,451 134,413 (77,038)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - - (63,639) (63,639)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES S 137,545 S 211,451 70,774 S (140,677)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,693,362
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR S 1,764,136
See note to required supplementary information. 58



GETTYSBURG MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2024

BUDGETARY DATA

The budget for the general fund is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the
PDE 2028 when the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted
amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all 2023/2024 budget transfers.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the general fund had an excess of expenditures over budget of $119,639. The
excess expenditures were covered by current year revenue.

Budgetary Compliance

The Charter School’s only legally adopted budget is for the general fund. All budgetary transfers, if applicable,
were made within the last nine months of the fiscal year. The Charter School cancels all purchase orders open at
year end; therefore, it does not have any outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2024. In addition, the Charter
School includes a portion of the prior year’s fund balance represented by unappropriated liquid assets remaining
in the fund as budgeted revenue in the succeeding year. The results of operations on a GAAP basis do not
recognize the fund balance allocation as revenue as it represents prior period’s excess of revenues over
expenditures.
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Herbein + Company Inc.
e r e I n 2763 Century Boulevard
Reading, PA 19610

CPAs + Advisors www.herbein.com | 610.378.1175

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Gettysburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Gettysburg
Montessori Charter School’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 16, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Gettysburg Montessori Charter
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Gettysburg Montessori
Charter School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Gettysburg Montessori Charter School’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Horbier + lompang obe.

Reading, Pennsylvania
April 16, 2025
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Herbein + Company Inc.
e r e I n 2763 Century Boulevard
Reading, PA 19610

CPAs + Advisors www.herbein.com | 610.378.1175
April 16, 2025

To the Board of Directors
Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
Gettysburg, Pennsylvania

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Gettysburg Montessori Charter School
(the Charter School) for the year ended June 30, 2024, we considered the Charter School’s internal control in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on internal control.

During our audit, we became aware of a few matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls
and improving operating efficiency. This letter summarizes our comments and suggestions regarding these
matters. This letter does not affect our report dated April 16, 2025, on the financial statements of the School.

Internal Control Matters

Act 72 of the 1971 Session of the General Assembly

The 1971 Act 72 of the Pennsylvania General Assembly relates to financial institutions pledging collateral
on a pooled basis to secure public deposits in excess of insurance limits. The Charter School invests
funds in one credit union. Deposits up to $250,000 are insured through NCUA insurance. We
recommend the School confirm with the credit union that collateral is being held for School deposits in
excess of the $250,000 insurance limit. During our audit confirmation procedures, the credit union was
unable to confirm that such collateral is being held.

Grant Accounting/Internal Controls

During our testing of grant revenue and receivables, we requested receipt support for the grant
receivable of $58k recorded for IDEA funding. While we were told the funds hadn’t been received, in
March of 2025 correcting journal entries were provided, indicating that the receipt had occurred during
the 23/24 school year but had been miscoded. While the error was corrected via journal entries
provided by the contracted accounting firm to properly code the original receipt and reverse the
accounts receivable that had been recorded, we recommend that the Charter School revisit internal
controls over grant accounting to ensure that grant receipts are accurately coded and any miscodings
are detected and corrected on a more timely basis.

Accounts Receivable/Deferred Inflow of Resources - Unavailable Revenue

During our testing of accounts receivable related to tuition, we noted receivable balances going back to
the 2014-2015 school year. We recommend that management review these old receivables for
collectability. If the receivable is no longer collectible, it should be written off. Similarly, there is
unearned tuition revenue recorded for overpayments received in prior years. We recommend that
these balances be evaluated and repaid if applicable. Finally, we wish to remind the Charter School that
a deferred inflow for unavailable revenue must be reported at the fund level (modified accrual basis of
accounting) for receivables not collected within the Charter School’s period of availability.
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Tuition Rate Support

During our audit procedures we selected a sample of 40 students who attended the Charter School
during the 2023-2024 fiscal year. We then requested the final reconciliation invoice for the District of
the student’s home residence and agreed the rate charged to the PDE-363 for the District, or rate
published on the Pennsylvania Department of Education’s website. For 7 of the students selected
(a total of 2 Districts), we were unable to agree the rate used in the final reconciliation invoice to the
PDE-363 or rate published. We recommend the Charter School maintain documentation for how tuition
rates are determined for all districts who are billed.

Capitalization Threshold

Currently, the Charter School does not have a defined capitalization threshold. Under the revised
Uniform Guidance, which is effective for awards issued on or after October 1, 2024, the revised
equipment threshold is the lesser of $10,000 or the entity’s capitalization threshold. Based on this
guidance, we recommend the Charter School review its capital asset policy and consider defining the
capitalization threshold as $10,000 to be consistent with the revised Uniform Guidance.

Pronouncements on the Horizon

e Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences - The primary objective of this statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement
guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and
measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.
This statement is effective for the Charter School’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.

e Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures - The primary objective of this statement is to provide users
of government financial statements with essential information about risks related to government's
vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. This statement is effective for the Charter
School’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.

o Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements - The primary objective of this statement is
to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing
information that is essential for decision making and assessing a government's accountability. This
statement is effective for the Charter School’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2026.

e Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets - The primary objective of this statement is to
provide users of government financial statements with essential information about certain types of
capital assets. This statement is effective for the Charter School’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2026.

We will keep you abreast of the new pronouncements and how they affect you specifically as they become
effective.

We will review the status of these comments and suggestions during our next audit engagement. We would be
pleased to discuss these areas further at your convenience or to assist you in implementing our
recommendations.

Sincerely,

Wt + VWIQM,

Herbein + Company, Inc.



